
 
 

AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda and Reports 
for the special meeting on  

Thursday, 27 November 2025 

at 3.00 pm 

in the Colonel Light Room, Adelaide Town Hall 

 
© 2025 City of Adelaide. All Rights Reserved. 

 
 

Public Document Pack



AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 
Meeting Agenda, Thursday, 27 November 2025, at 3.00 pm 

 
 
 
Membership The Lord Mayor (ex-officio) 

1 Council Member 
4 External Independent Members 
2 Proxy Council Members 

Quorum 3 

Presiding Member Nicolle Rantanen Reynolds 

Committee Members The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor, Dr Jane Lomax-Smith (ex-officio) 

Mark Davies 

Matthew Fletcher 

John Jovicevic 

Councillor Janet Giles 

 
  

Agenda 
 
Item  Pages 

  
1.   Acknowledgement of Country 

‘Council acknowledges that we are meeting on traditional Country of the Kaurna 
people of the Adelaide Plains and pays respect to Elders past and present.  We 
recognise and respect their cultural heritage, beliefs and relationship with the land. 
We acknowledge that they are of continuing importance to the Kaurna people living 
today. 
And we also extend that respect to other Aboriginal Language Groups and other First 
Nations who are present today.’ 

 

 
2.   Apologies and Leave of Absence 

Nil 

 

 
3.   Declaration of Conflict of Interest    
 
4.   Reports    
 
 4.1   Proposed Strategic Risks and Internal Audit Plan 4 - 27 
 
 4.2   Audit and Risk Committee Meeting Dates 28 - 30 
 
5.   Exclusion of the Public 

In accordance with sections 90(2), (3) and (7) of the Local Government Act 1999 
(SA) the Audit and Risk Committee will consider whether to discuss in confidence the 
reports contained within section 6 of this Agenda. 

31 - 33 

 
6.   Confidential Item    
 
 6.1 Confidential Meeting with Internal Auditors [S90(3) (b)] 34 - 36 
 
 6.2 City East Housing Project Prudential Report [S90(3) (b), (d), (h)] 37 - 93 
 
 6.3 Confidential - Appointment of External Auditor [S90(3) (k)] 94 - 97 
 
7.   Closure    

 
 



 
 

Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda – Friday 27 November 2025 

 

Friday, 27 November 2025 
Audit and Risk Committee 

Proposed Strategic Risks and 2026-2029 
Internal Audit Plan 
 

Strategic Alignment - Our Corporation 
Program Contact:  
Rebecca Hayes, Associate 
Director Governance & Strategy 

Public 
 

Approving Officer:  
Anthony Spartalis, Chief 
Operating Officer 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this report is to present the proposed 2026 – 2029 Internal Audit Plan and proposed Strategic Risks 
for the City of Adelaide. 

Noting the objectives of the City of Adelaide Strategic Plan 2024-2028, Council’s Strategic Risk and Internal Audit 
Group (SRIA) together with Council’s newly appointed Internal Auditors, BDO, have reviewed the City of Adelaide’s 
2025-2028 Internal Audit Plan and Strategic Risks.  

The revised draft 2026 – 2029 Internal Audit Plan and Strategic Risks are provided to the Audit and Risk 
Committee for noting and feedback. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE ADVISES COUNCIL 

THAT THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 

1. Notes the Proposed Strategic Risks and 2026 - 2029 Internal Audit Plan report on the Agenda for the 
meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee held on 27 November 2025. 

2. Notes the draft 2026 – 2029 Internal Audit Plan as contained in Attachment A to Item 4.1 on the Agenda 
for the meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee held on 27 November 2025 and provides the following 
feedback: 

2.1_______________________ 

2.2_______________________ 

3. Notes the draft Strategic Risks contained as contained in Attachment B to Item 4.1 on the Agenda for the 
Audit and Risk Committee held on 27 November 2025 and provides the following feedback: 

3.1________________________ 

3.2________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4.1



 
 

Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda – Friday 27 November 2025 

IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS 
 

City of Adelaide 
2024-2028 
Strategic Plan 

Strategic Alignment – Our Corporation  
The role of the City of Adelaide is to uphold the values of integrity and accountability. To 
ensure that the Council delivers services to the community as a leader, advocate and 
facilitator by maintaining a transparent decision-making process. 
Internal audit is an essential component of a good governance framework. It enables 
Council to ensure it is performing its functions legally, effectively and efficiently. 

Policy Alignment with the City of Adelaide Risk Management Operating Guideline. 

Consultation Not as a result of this report 

Resource Not as a result of this report 

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative 

Sound risk and opportunity management, minimises and controls risk, identifies 
improvement opportunities, and enables well-informed decision-making and supports the 
delivery of the Strategic Plan. 

Opportunities 

Internal audit focuses largely on compliance, risk management and improvement 
opportunities. As such audits suggest a range of improvement opportunities related to the 
area being reviewed, enhancing functions and services aligning Council processes to best 
practice standards. 

25/26 Budget 
Allocation $250,000 is included in the operating budget to support internal audit activities. 

Proposed 26/27 
Budget Allocation  Not as a result of this report 

Life of Project, 
Service, Initiative 
or (Expectancy of) 
Asset 

Not as a result of this report 

25/26 Budget 
Reconsideration  
(if applicable) 

Not as a result of this report 

Ongoing Costs 
(eg maintenance 
cost) 

Not as a result of this report 

Other Funding 
Sources Not as a result of this report 

 
 

 

Page 4



 
 

Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda – Friday 27 November 2025 

DISCUSSION 
Background 

1. One of the roles of the Audit and Risk Committee (ARC), as per clause 11.2.1 of its Terms of Reference, is 
to review the Council’s Risk Profile and monitor the risk exposure of Council and its subsidiaries. 

2. The Chief Executive Officer has assigned responsibility for managing the internal audit program to the Chief 
Operating Officer (the COO). The COO will be supported by the Associate Director Governance and 
Strategy, and the Manager Corporate Governance & Risk, and together those positions take responsibility 
for the management of the Internal Audit program and liaising with BDO (Council’s internal audit partner), 
who commenced with the Council on 1 October 2025, to conduct Internal Audit services for the Council. 

Internal Audit Plan 2026 - 2029 
3. Noting the objectives of the City of Adelaide Strategic Plan 2024 – 2028, the Strategic Risk and Internal 

Audit Group (SRIA) reviewed City of Adelaide’s (the Council) three-year (2025 – 2028) Internal Audit Plan 
(the Plan). 

4. BDO facilitated an Internal Audit Plan Workshop to review and discuss the proposed internal audits for 
Council with the Executive. The feedback has been collated and formalised in a draft four-year Plan which 
was discussed at SRIA on 13 November 2025, in consideration of the Council’s strategic risks and key 
priorities within the Council Strategic Plan 2024 – 2028. 

5. The draft Plan for 2026 – 2029 includes a number of internal audits that can be facilitated using existing 
Council resources. Internal audits are performed, either in-house, by Council’s internal audit partner, or 
specialised provider where required (for example cyber). In-house audits include operational and 
transactional compliance audits. The internal audit partner will perform the strategic and compliance audits, 
where specialised skills and expertise are required. This approach ensures that appropriate assurance is 
provided to the Council in a manner that achieves the best value for money, leveraging our in-house and 
external capabilities where appropriate. 

6. Each internal audit has been identified as a risk mitigation to the Council’s Strategic Risk. 

7. A brief draft scope for each internal audit is included in Attachment A. A more comprehensive scope will be 
developed and presented to SRIA and ARC for approval prior to each internal audit being undertaken. 

Strategic Risks  
8. Noting the objectives of the City of Adelaide Strategic Plan, SRIA reviewed the Council’s Strategic Risks.  

9. BDO facilitated a Strategic Risk Workshop to review and discuss the strategic risks for Council with the 
Executive. The feedback has been collated and formalised in a draft Register which was discussed at SRIA 
on 13 November 2025. 

10. The updated draft Strategic Risks appear as Attachment B with eleven risks identified. They are: 

10.1. Financial Sustainability – Council financial settings are not sustainable in the long term. 

10.2. Cyber Security – Cyber security vulnerability exposes the Council to data breaches and system 
compromise, risking sensitive information and operational disruption. 

10.3. Assets and Infrastructure – Ineffective asset and infrastructure planning, systems, and programs. 

10.4. Business Resilience – The risk of disruptions to essential services and operations due to unforeseen 
events, threatening the Council’s ability to safeguard its personnel, assets, maintain service continuity 
and meet community needs. 

10.5. Climate Change Adaptation and Vulnerability – Impact of changing climate conditions and an increase 
in extreme weather events presents a risk to Council, community, infrastructure and natural 
environment. 

10.6. Statutory and Regulatory – Non-compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements poses legal, 
financial, and reputational risks to the organisation. 

10.7. Reputational – Negative reputation and public perception of Council. 

10.8. Human Resource Management – Ineffective human resource management, and work health & safety 
non-compliance. 

10.9. Ineffective Governance – Ineffective governance leading to operational inefficiencies, legal liabilities, 
and reputational damage. 

Page 5



 
 

Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda – Friday 27 November 2025 

10.10. Lack of Fit for Purpose IT Systems and Data Governance – Inadequate IT systems and data 
governance endanger operational efficiency and data integrity while increasing susceptibility to 
security breaches and regulatory non-compliance. 

10.11. Strategy Implementation – Our strategic planning processes and leadership are not fully aligned or 
effective in supporting the implementation of key organisational objectives. 

11. The approach to Strategic Risks will be replicated for the subsidiaries, Adelaide Economic Development 
Agency, Adelaide Central Market Authority and Kadaltilla to ensure a consistent approach to risk 
management practices. 

12. A copy of the previous Strategic Risk and Opportunity Register appears as Link 1 for reference.  
 

DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
Link 1 – Strategic Risk and Opportunity Register 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A – 2026 - 2029 Internal Audit Plan 

Attachment B – Strategic Risks 
 

- END OF REPORT -  

Page 6

https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/Audit_27_November_2025_Item_4.1_Link_1.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/Audit_27_November_2025_Item_4.1_Link_1.pdf


Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed by BDO

Audit Type Proposed
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority Rationale

Strategic 

1. Strategic
Risk
Assessment
and Alignment

This internal audit will review the Council’s strategic risk register and assess 
the adequacy of current risk definitions, causes, and controls through bow tie 
risk analysis. The review will evaluate whether strategic risks are clearly linked 
to organisational objectives, appropriately rated, and aligned with the internal 
audit program. It will also consider the effectiveness of governance and 
monitoring arrangements supporting strategic risk management and identify 
opportunities to strengthen integration between strategic risks, corporate 
planning, and assurance activities. In addition, the audit will review existing 
internal audits to assess their continued relevance and alignment with the 
updated strategic risk register, ensuring the internal audit plan remains risk-
based and reflective of current strategic priorities.

1 FY26 (Q2) All Risks

This audit will ensure 
the Council’s strategic 
risks are clearly defined, 
well-governed, and 
aligned with 
organisational priorities 
and the internal audit 
plan.

Strategic 

2. Strategic
Planning,
Governance
and
Organisational 
Reporting

This internal audit will assess the design and effectiveness of the Council’s 
strategic planning, governance, and reporting frameworks. The review will 
examine how strategic objectives are developed, implemented, monitored, 
and reported, including the alignment of reporting arrangements with the 
corporate strategy and strategic risk management. It will also consider the 
effectiveness and appropriateness of key reporting processes, including those 
relating to subsidiaries, and identify opportunities to enhance the 
transparency, consistency, and quality of organisational reporting.

1 FY26 (Q2)
Stakeholder 
Engagement
Governance

Key issue in relationship 
management aligning 
priorities and Council 
resources 

Strategic 

3. Strategic
third-party
relationship
management

This internal audit will assess the framework under which the Council engages 
with third parties from a business partnership, collaboration and affiliation 
perspective. The audit will assess the authority framework to engage and 
commit the Council to third parties, risk appetite, due diligence processes as 
well as coordination and communication of third-party engagements. Specific 
focus areas would be agreed with the Council.

1 FY26 (Q2)

Community
Stakeholder 
Engagement
Governance
City Attraction

Ensure alignment  
management of Strategy 
and Risk is effective and 
does not create 
duplication of effort and 
resources

Attachment A

P
age 7

A
ttachm

ent A



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed by BDO

Audit Type Proposed Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority Rationale

Strategic 

4. Commercial
revenue and
alternative revenue 
streams

The purpose of this internal audit is to consider the practices in 
place relating to new revenue streams. As part of this review, the 
following will be considered:
• Initial new revenue identification processes (including stakeholder
communication channels and consultation)
• Development of benefit versus cost analysis, including
consideration of current and future market trends
• Ongoing monitoring and reporting processes

1 FY26 (Q3) Financial Revenue growth is a key issue 
for Council strategy 

Operational 5. Social Media

This internal audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s 
governance, monitoring, and response processes for managing third-
party comments on social media platforms. The review will consider 
the adequacy of policies and procedures for moderating content, 
escalation protocols for inappropriate or reputationally sensitive 
posts, roles and responsibilities, and alignment with legislative and 
reputational obligations. It will also evaluate whether social media 
management practices support transparency, consistency, and 
appropriate community engagement.

1 FY26 (Q3) Stakeholder
Engagement

Moderation of third-party 
comments on social media is 
an issue for CoA due to large 
following.

Operational 
6. Project
Management
Framework

Review Project management processes including adequacy of project 
management framework, alignment to leading practices (e.g. with 
reference to differing frameworks), project governance and 
oversight, end-to-end project management process and gateways 
including identification, approval stages, planning, delivery, 
commissioning and handover, and close-out/post delivery review.

1 FY26 (Q3) Governance

Provide assurance over the 
effectiveness and consistency 
of the Council’s project 
management practices.

P
age 8



6

Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed by BDO

Audit 
Type

Proposed 
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk

Linkage Priority Rationale

Operational 
7. ICT Project
Governance

This internal audit will assess the effectiveness of ICT project governance frameworks and 
practices, including how they align with business needs, best practice principles, and the 
Council’s broader governance structure. The review will consider project planning, 
oversight, reporting, and integration of ICT initiatives with organisational objectives and 
stakeholder requirements.

2 FY27 IT Systems

Ensuring IT project 
governance is 
contemporary and meets 
Councils needs

Compliance 

8. Regulatory
Compliance
Framework
(could occur Q4
FY26)

This internal audit will assess the maturity and effectiveness of the Council’s regulatory 
compliance framework. The review will examine how the Council identifies and captures 
its legislative and regulatory obligations, assigns ownership for managing compliance, and 
defines processes and controls to ensure ongoing compliance. It will also evaluate 
oversight and monitoring arrangements, breach management and reporting processes, and 
the mechanisms in place for tracking and responding to regulatory changes.

2 FY27

Community
Stakeholder 
Engagement
Statutory 
and 
Regulatory

Council has wide ranging 
compliance obligations 
and there may be 
opportunities to mature 
the framework

Operational 
9. Business Plan
& Budget

This internal audit will assess the effectiveness and efficiency of the Council’s business 
planning and budget development processes. The review will focus on the governance, 
coordination, and integration of business planning activities across the organisation and 
Chamber. Particular emphasis will be placed on the budget build process, including the 
timeliness, accuracy, and transparency of financial inputs, assumptions, and decision-
making to support the delivery of strategic objectives.

2 FY27 Financial Focus on budget build

Operational 
10. Change
management
review

This audit will assess the design and effectiveness of the Council’s change management 
framework across both IT and non-IT areas, including alignment between Human 
Resources and Technology functions. It will consider progress on the culture survey action 
to develop an organisational change management approach and actions from the TechOne 
review relating to IT/HR alignment. The review will evaluate the maturity of current 
practices against better practice frameworks and identify opportunities to strengthen 
consistency and accountability in managing change.

2 FY27 IT Systems
Critical for assisting 
council to be an agile 
and flexible workplace 

Strategic 

11. Talent
Management and 
Succession
Planning

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s talent management and 
succession planning processes. The review will examine how career pathways are defined, 
succession risks are identified and managed, and whether planning occurs consistently 
across the organisation. It will also consider the processes supporting performance 
development opportunities and practices that enable workforce capability and continuity.

2 FY27 Human
Resources

Critical for ensuring 
council has the skills to 
deliver on strategy

P
age 9



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed by BDO

Audit Type Proposed
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk 

Linkage Priority Rationale

Strategic 
12. Business
Resilience

This internal audit will assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
business resilience framework, including business continuity planning (BCP), 
IT disaster recovery (IT DR), and crisis management arrangements. The review 
will evaluate whether critical business functions and systems can be 
maintained or restored within acceptable timeframes following a disruption. 
It will also consider the clarity of roles and responsibilities, testing and 
maintenance of plans, communication protocols, and the alignment of 
resilience activities with strategic and operational risk management 
processes.

2 FY27 Business
Reslience

This audit will confirm that 
the Council’s business 
resilience arrangements can 
effectively maintain or 
restore critical functions 
during a disruption and are 
clearly defined, tested, and 
aligned with organisational 
risk management.

Operational 
13. Procure to
Pay and Contract 
Management

This internal audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s end-to-end 
procurement and contract management framework, from tendering and 
supplier selection through to contract execution, performance monitoring, 
and closure. The review will evaluate compliance with Council policies, 
legislative requirements, and probity standards, as well as the efficiency and 
transparency of procurement processes. It will also consider the adequacy of 
controls over contract management practices, including contract variations, 
performance monitoring, and value-for-money outcomes.

2 FY27 Governance
Financial

Managing value for money 
and relationship 
management with providers. 

Operational 
14. Central
Market

This audit will conduct a post-implementation review of the Central Market 
redevelopment, focusing on the effectiveness of project delivery and the 
management of associated commercial risks. The review will assess whether 
governance, financial, and operational arrangements support sustainable 
market performance and value for the Council.

2 FY27 City Attraction
Financial Significant project for CoA

P
age 10



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed by BDO

Audit Type Proposed Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk
Linkage Priority Rationale

Operational 
15. Payroll Review
Pre-Implementation 
review

This audit will assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s new 
payroll system prior to implementation. The review will evaluate project 
governance, system configuration, data migration, and control design to 
ensure the system is capable of accurately processing payroll, complying with 
legislative requirements, and supporting efficient workforce management once 
operational.

3 FY28 IT Systems

This audit will ensure the 
new payroll system is 
well-governed, properly 
configured, and capable 
of delivering accurate, 
compliant, and efficient 
payroll processing before 
it goes live.

Operational 
16. Community
Consultation
Review

This review will assess the process of community consultation by reviewing 
policy and operating guidelines as well as legislative requirements. It will also 
include a review to ensure that Projects are complying with their respective 
Community Engagement Plans and that these Plans meet the requirements of 
the Program Community Engagement Management Plan. This internal audit will 
look at the consistency of community consultation practices across different 
areas of the Council and an opportunity to leverage better practices and 
updated community consultation methods and tools.

3 FY28

Community
Stakeholder 
Engagement
Statutory and 
Regulatory

This review will support 
greater consistency, 
transparency, and 
effectiveness in how the 
Council engages with its 
community.

Operational 
17. ESG Reporting
Processes Review

This audit will assess the Council’s current ESG data, data management and 
reporting processes to understand the quality and robustness and provide 
recommendations on reporting framework alignment. Areas of focus will 
include analyse of existing ESG data collected by the Council, review against 
better practice reporting framework relevant to the LG sector and conducting 
a gap analysis between Council data and data management practices and 
framework requirements and providing recommendations on relevant reporting 
frameworks for Council consideration.

3 FY28

Climate 
Change
Environments
Statutory and 
Regulatory

Combined with 
organisational reporting, 
this will provide guidance 
and suggested 
improvements for 
focussing reporting effort 
and resources to improve 
efficiency.

P
age 11



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed by BDO

Audit Type Proposed
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk 

Linkage Priority Rationale

Operational 
18. Strategic
Asset
Management

The objective of this audit is to assess the maturity and effectiveness of the 
Council’s Asset Management Framework and its alignment with the Strategic Plan, 
Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP), and Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP). 
The review will:
• Assess the adequacy of the Council’s Asset Management Plan (AMP), including
strategies and programs for asset creation, operation, maintenance,
refurbishment, replacement, disposal, and performance monitoring to support
organisational needs.
• Review the Council’s approach to life cycle planning and forecasting of future
operational and capital expenditure requirements.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of maintenance policies and whether defined
service standards support asset availability, functionality, and sustainability in line 
with strategic and financial objectives.

3 FY28
Assets and 
Infrastructure
Financial

Maintaining revenue 
levels,  expenditure 
control and meeting 
communities needs 

Strategic 
19. Funding for
Precinct Groups

This audit will assess the effectiveness, transparency, and accountability of the 
Council’s processes for funding precinct groups. The review will examine 
governance arrangements, eligibility and approval processes, allocation of funds, 
and monitoring and reporting practices to ensure alignment with Council 
objectives and equitable distribution of resources. It will also consider whether 
appropriate controls and performance measures are in place to support 
responsible use of public funds and achievement of intended community 
outcomes.

3 FY28 Financial
Governance

Key issue in relationship 
management aligning 
priorities and Council 
resources

P
age 12



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed by BDO

Audit Type Proposed Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk 
Linkage Priority Rationale

Operational 
20. Fleet
Management

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s fleet management 
framework, including governance, utilisation, and cost-efficiency of plant and 
equipment. The review will examine procurement and maintenance processes, 
asset replacement planning, and the evaluation of owned versus hired 
equipment. It will also assess the Council’s readiness and planning for 
transitioning to an electric or low-emission fleet, considering financial, 
operational, and environmental impacts.

3 FY28
Financial
Assets and 
Infrastructure

Reaudit to be aligned to 
transition of fleet to 
electric vehicles

Compliance 
21. Diversity and
Inclusion
Framework review

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s diversity and inclusion 
framework, including the governance, processes, and practices that support an 
inclusive and equitable workplace and community. The review will consider 
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, as well as 
alignment with better practice principles. It will also evaluate initiatives and 
engagement approaches that promote diversity, inclusion, and belonging 
across the organisation and community, with key focus areas to be agreed with 
management.

3 FY28 Human
Resources

Part of Strategic Plan 
outcomes 

Strategic 
22. Property
management

The objective of this audit is to assess the effectiveness of the Council’s 
property management framework, including governance, utilisation, and 
control practices across the property lifecycle. The review will examine 
policies, processes, and controls relating to the management of Council-owned 
and strata properties, including contract management and compliance with 
legislative requirements. It will also review how land and asset registers are 
maintained and assess current practices for managing leases on community 
land. The audit will identify any gaps or inconsistencies to support 
harmonisation of property management practices across business units and 
inform ongoing service reviews.

3 FY28

Assets and 
Infrastructure
Financial

This audit will ensure 
the Council’s property 
management framework 
is well-governed, 
compliant, and 
consistently applied to 
support effective 
utilisation and lifecycle 
management of Council-
owned assets.

P
age 13



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed by BDO

Audit Type Proposed Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk 
Linkage Priority Rationale

Operational 

23. Long-Term
Financial Planning / 
Financial
Sustainability

This audit will assess the robustness and effectiveness of the Council’s long-
term financial planning framework and its alignment with the Strategic Plan 
and Annual Budget. The review will evaluate key assumptions, forecasting 
methodologies, and financial sustainability indicators to determine whether 
the Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP) supports informed decision-making and 
long-term fiscal stability. It will also consider the integration of asset 
management, capital works, and service delivery priorities within the financial 
planning process.

4 FY29 Financial Critical financial 
management 

Operational 
24. Waste
Management

This audit will assess the efficiency, economy, and effectiveness of the 
Council’s waste management service delivery models. The review will evaluate 
governance, contract management, and accountability frameworks supporting 
waste operations, as well as the adequacy of monitoring, reporting, and 
performance measures. It will also consider opportunities to improve value for 
money, sustainability outcomes, and alignment with community and 
environmental objectives.

4 FY29
Environments
Financial Business efficiency and 

value for money

P
age 14



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed by BDO

Audit Type Proposed Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk 
Linkage Priority Rationale

Operational 
25. Payroll Post-
Implementation
Review

This audit will assess the effectiveness of payroll controls and processes 
following the implementation of the new payroll system. The review will 
evaluate whether system configuration, control design, and operational 
practices adequately manage payroll risks, ensure data accuracy, and 
maintain compliance with industrial awards, enterprise agreements, and 
legislative obligations. It will also consider opportunities to enhance 
efficiency and reporting reliability within the payroll function.

4 FY29 IT Systems
Financial

This audit will confirm that 
post-implementation payroll 
controls effectively manage 
risks, ensure accuracy and 
compliance, and support 
efficient payroll operations.

Strategic 
26. Park Lands
Review

This audit will assess the Council’s adherence to the Park Lands Act, 
relevant policies, and the Park Lands Management Strategy. The review will 
evaluate the alignment of park lands management practices with the 
Council’s Strategic Plan, as well as the effectiveness of community 
engagement and consultation processes supporting park lands planning, use, 
and preservation.

4 FY29 Governance Mid priority as may be cost
reducing strategy 

Operational 27. Stormwater

This audit will assess the effectiveness of processes and key controls 
supporting the planning, delivery, and maintenance of the Council’s 
stormwater assets. The review will evaluate whether governance, design, 
and operational practices are contemporary, fit-for-purpose, and aligned 
with better practice standards to ensure sustainable and resilient 
stormwater management.

4 FY29
Assets and 
Infrastructure
Financial

Maintaining revenue levels,  
expenditure control and 
meeting communities needs 

P
age 15



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed In-House / Other / Not by BDO

Audit Type Proposed Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority
Rationale

Annual 

1. Review of
Internal Audit
Recommendation
Implementation

This audit will assess the effectiveness and timeliness of actions taken to 
address findings and recommendations from previous internal audits. The 
review will evaluate whether agreed management actions and control 
improvements have been fully implemented and are operating as intended. It 
will also identify any gaps, delays, or recurring issues to provide assurance to 
leadership on the maturity of the Council’s control environment and 
continuous improvement processes.

1 FY26 (Q2) All Risks
Inform processes, 
methodology and 

outputs

Compliance 
2. Legislative
Compliance Program

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s legislative compliance 
work plan and supporting framework. The review will focus on the ongoing 
process for monitoring, auditing, and managing compliance with key 
legislation—reviewing one Act at a time—and evaluating how actions are 
recorded, tracked, and managed within Promapp. It will also consider 
governance, accountability, and reporting arrangements to ensure sustained 
compliance and continuous improvement.

1 FY26 (Q2) Statutory and
Regulatory Annual compliance

Annual / 
Compliance

3. Penetration
Testing and PCI
Compliance (Audits
conducted
concurrently)

Penetration testing:
This audit will involve ongoing penetration testing to identify vulnerabilities 
and weaknesses within the Council’s internal network and digital 
environment. The review will assess the adequacy of existing security 
controls, monitoring processes, and response mechanisms designed to 
prevent unauthorised access and safeguard Council data and systems.
PCI Compliance:
The objective is that CoA requires a review of its compliance with the 
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS) and to report on this 
compliance by presenting its acquiring bank with a completed Self-
Assessment Questionnaire (SAQ). This internal audit will provide CoA with an 
understanding of the level of PCI DSS compliance associated with the 
payment processing facilities, and to provide guidance in areas of required 
remediation following the assessment. 

1 FY26 (Q3)
Cyber security
Statutory and 

Regulatory

Key requirement for 
IT systems and 

security
Annual compliance

P
age 16



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed In-House / Other / Not by BDO

Audit Type Proposed Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority Rationale

Operational 

4. Cloud
vendor//Third Party 
Cyber Risk
Assessment

This review will include assessing and understanding the cyber resiliency 
of critical IT vendors for Council. Areas of focus will include assessing 
the third-party vendors’ capacity to mitigate against large-scale 
disruptive events, cyber-resiliency preparedness, recovery capability and 
capacity, oversight of subcontractors, vendor Recovery Point Objective 
(RPO) and Recovery Time Objective (RTO), data confidentiality 
agreements, oversight of fourth parties and cyber insurance

1 FY26 (Q3) IT Systems Align with Annual Cyber 
Security penetration testing 

Operational 
5. Cyber Security
health check

The objective of this audit is to provide the Council a health check 
around the current cyber security systems in place. The scope of this 
audit will consider the following:
• The cyber security safeguards and measures in place and plans for the
future including measures to prevent and detect cyber breaches and the
recovery mechanism should a breach eventuate
• Responsibilities and accountabilities for cyber security and the skills of
staff within the ICT team to abreast of cyber security developments
• The reporting arrangements and escalation process should a cyber-
breach occur
• Cultural awareness and training amongst staff in understanding cyber
risks

1 FY26 (Q3) Cyber security

Ensuring IT systems and 
processes are fit for 

purpose and meet Councils 
needs

Annual / 
Compliance 

6. Record Keeping
Audit

This internal audit will perform a random check on record keeping by 
sampling a selection of staff from each portfolio. This audit will be 
developed and facilitated in conjunction with IM as per requirements in 
the Record Keeping Operating Guideline.

1 FY26 (Q4) Statutory and
Regulatory Annual compliance

P
age 17



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed In-House / Other / Not by BDO

Audit Type Proposed
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority Rationale

Operational 

7. Customer
Request
Management (City
Operations)

This internal audit will assess the effectiveness of the customer 
experience and processes for managing customer service request at City 
Operations
This will also address issues , including:
A. There seems to be a practice that information requests go directly to
staff based on relationships across the organisation
B. We can have multiple staff responding (which is quite appropriate) but
there is not always coordinated and suspect gaps where some areas / 
staff are not asked to respond
C. Sometimes there is no visibility of requests or responses from the
Program
D. Some timeframes are also very tight to enable a response

2 FY27 Stakeholder 
Engagement

Important for managing 
reputation and customer 

engagement 
not audited for last 5 years 

Compliance 
8. Mandatory
Training

Review the process for the documenting mandated training required for 
roles or to maintain accreditation for designated roles, costed out in the 
budget with reminders set to ensure we keep the records up to date. 
Ranges from formal accreditation such as Assessment Manager / Building 
Compliance Officers, to work zone traffic management, certificates which 
are required every few years for those assessing permit applications.

2 FY27 Statutory and 
Regulatory

Should also consider 
decision making process for 
deciding mandatory training 

and costing 

Compliance 9. Legal Services

This audit will assess the governance and controls surrounding the 
procurement and management of legal services across the Council. The 
review will examine how legal advice is sourced, authorised, and 
monitored, including instances where advice is obtained outside the 
Governance function. It will evaluate compliance with procurement and 
delegation requirements, consistency of engagement practices, and 
opportunities to strengthen oversight, cost management, and 
accountability in legal service delivery.

2 FY27 Governance
Financial Mid term priority 

Operational 
10. Fees and
Charges

Review processes around how fees and charges are developed, including 
event management, fees associated with event permits and the use of 
multi-year licences.

2 FY27 Financial Align with business plan 
and budget

P
age 18



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed In-House / Other / Not by BDO

Audit Type Proposed
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority 

Rationale

Annual 

11. Review of
Internal Audit
Recommendation
Implementation

This audit will assess the effectiveness and timeliness of actions taken to address 
findings and recommendations from previous internal audits. The review will 
evaluate whether agreed management actions and control improvements have 
been fully implemented and are operating as intended. It will also identify any 
gaps, delays, or recurring issues to provide assurance to leadership on the maturity 
of the Council’s control environment and continuous improvement processes.

2 FY27 All Risks

Inform 
processes, 

methodology 
and outputs

Annual / 
Compliance

12. Legislative
Compliance
Program

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s legislative compliance 
work plan and supporting framework. The review will focus on the ongoing process 
for monitoring, auditing, and managing compliance with key legislation—reviewing 
one Act at a time—and evaluating how actions are recorded, tracked, and 
managed within Promapp. It will also consider governance, accountability, and 
reporting arrangements to ensure sustained compliance and continuous 
improvement.

2 FY27 Statutory and 
Regulatory

Annual 
compliance

Annual / 
Compliance 

13. Penetration
Testing

This audit will involve ongoing penetration testing to identify vulnerabilities and 
weaknesses within the Council’s internal network and digital environment. The 
review will assess the adequacy of existing security controls, monitoring processes, 
and response mechanisms designed to prevent unauthorised access and safeguard 
Council data and systems.

2 FY27 Cyber security

Key 
requirement 
for IT systems 
and security

Compliance 
14. PCI
Compliance

The objective is that CoA requires a review of its compliance with the Payment 
Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS) and to report on this compliance by 
presenting its acquiring bank with a completed Self-Assessment Questionnaire 
(SAQ). This internal audit will provide CoA with an understanding of the level of 
PCI DSS compliance associated with the payment processing facilities, and to 
provide guidance in areas of required remediation following the assessment. 

2 FY27 Statutory and 
Regulatory

Annual 
compliance

Compliance 
15. Record
Keeping Audit

This internal audit will perform a random check on record keeping by sampling a 
selection of staff from each portfolio. This audit will be developed and facilitated 
in conjunction with IM as per requirements in the Record Keeping Operating 
Guideline.

2 FY27 Statutory and 
Regulatory

Annual 
compliance

P
age 19



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed In-House / Other / Not by BDO

Audit Type Proposed
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority Rationale

Compliance 
16. Elected
Member Request
System

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s elected member 
request system, including the processes and practices in place to manage, 
track, and respond to requests. The review will evaluate whether the 
system supports transparency, accountability, and equitable outcomes for 
the community, and will consider opportunities to enhance efficiency, 
consistency, and reporting to support informed decision-making.

3 FY28 Governance
Financial

Operational 17. By-Laws

This audit will assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
processes and procedures for developing, implementing, and managing 
By-Laws. The review will evaluate governance and compliance 
frameworks supporting By-Law administration, including monitoring, 
enforcement, and review practices. It will also consider alignment with 
legislative requirements and opportunities to improve consistency, 
transparency, and efficiency in By-Law management.

3 FY28 Statutory and 
Regulatory Process review 

Annual / 
Compliance

18. Legislative
Compliance
Program

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s legislative 
compliance work plan and supporting framework. The review will focus on 
the ongoing process for monitoring, auditing, and managing compliance 
with key legislation—reviewing one Act at a time—and evaluating how 
actions are recorded, tracked, and managed within Promapp. It will also 
consider governance, accountability, and reporting arrangements to 
ensure sustained compliance and continuous improvement.

3 FY28 Statutory and 
Regulatory Annual compliance

P
age 20



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed In-House / Other / Not by BDO

Audit Type Proposed
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority 

Rationale

Annual / 
Compliance 

19. Penetration
Testing

This audit will involve ongoing penetration testing to identify vulnerabilities and 
weaknesses within the Council’s internal network and digital environment. The 
review will assess the adequacy of existing security controls, monitoring processes, 
and response mechanisms designed to prevent unauthorised access and safeguard 
Council data and systems.

3 FY28 Cyber security

Key 
requirement 
for IT systems 
and security

Compliance 
20. PCI
Compliance

The objective is that CoA requires a review of its compliance with the Payment 
Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS) and to report on this compliance by 
presenting its acquiring bank with a completed Self-Assessment Questionnaire 
(SAQ). This internal audit will provide CoA with an understanding of the level of 
PCI DSS compliance associated with the payment processing facilities, and to 
provide guidance in areas of required remediation following the assessment. 

3 FY28 Statutory and 
Regulatory

Annual 
compliance

Compliance 
21. Record
Keeping Audit

This internal audit will perform a random check on record keeping by sampling a 
selection of staff from each portfolio. This audit will be developed and facilitated 
in conjunction with IM as per requirements in the Record Keeping Operating 
Guideline.

3 FY28 Statutory and 
Regulatory

Annual 
compliance

P
age 21



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed In-House / Other / Not by BDO

Audit Type Proposed
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority Rationale

Operational 
22. Complaints
Handling

This audit will assess the effectiveness and consistency of the Council’s 
complaints handling processes. The review will evaluate the adequacy of 
policies, procedures, and systems for receiving, recording, investigating, 
and resolving complaints. It will also consider timeliness, transparency, 
and communication practices, as well as opportunities to enhance 
accountability, customer experience, and alignment with better practice 
complaints management frameworks.

4 FY29 Stakeholder 
Engagement

Key part of engagement 
with community 

Operational 

23. Decision
making /
delegation /
authority levels

This audit will assess the effectiveness and efficiency of the Council’s 
decision-making, delegations, and authority frameworks. The review will 
evaluate whether responsibilities and approval levels are appropriately 
defined and applied to enable timely and accountable decision-making. It 
will consider opportunities to streamline processes by delegating 
decisions to the appropriate management levels (e.g. approvals for 
training, IT requests, temporary labour hire, and gifts/benefits) while 
maintaining adequate oversight and control.

4 FY29 Governance Consider external audit to
ensure compliance with 

delegations 

Operational 

24. Marketing
spend
effectiveness
review

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s marketing and 
communications activities, including governance, planning, and 
evaluation processes. The review will examine how marketing programs 
are developed, approved, and measured for success, as well as 
compliance with Council policies and procurement requirements. It will 
also consider the management of marketing contracts with advertising 
vendors and evaluate the Council’s approach to maintaining and 
overseeing its suite of websites to ensure consistency, efficiency, and 
alignment with strategic objectives.

4 FY29
Financial

Stakeholder 
Engagement

Assessment of value for 
money and return

P
age 22



Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
Audits to be Completed In-House / Other / Not by BDO

Audit Type Proposed
Audit Proposed Scope Priority Timing Risk Linkage Priority 

Rationale

Annual / 
Compliance

25. Legislative
Compliance
Program

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the Council’s legislative compliance 
work plan and supporting framework. The review will focus on the ongoing process 
for monitoring, auditing, and managing compliance with key legislation—reviewing 
one Act at a time—and evaluating how actions are recorded, tracked, and 
managed within Promapp. It will also consider governance, accountability, and 
reporting arrangements to ensure sustained compliance and continuous 
improvement.

4 FY29 Statutory and 
Regulatory

Annual 
compliance

Annual / 
Compliance 

26. Penetration
Testing

This audit will involve ongoing penetration testing to identify vulnerabilities and 
weaknesses within the Council’s internal network and digital environment. The 
review will assess the adequacy of existing security controls, monitoring processes, 
and response mechanisms designed to prevent unauthorised access and safeguard 
Council data and systems.

4 FY29 Cyber security

Key 
requirement 
for IT systems 
and security

Compliance 
27. PCI
Compliance

The objective is that CoA requires a review of its compliance with the Payment 
Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS) and to report on this compliance by 
presenting its acquiring bank with a completed Self-Assessment Questionnaire 
(SAQ). This internal audit will provide CoA with an understanding of the level of 
PCI DSS compliance associated with the payment processing facilities, and to 
provide guidance in areas of required remediation following the assessment. 

4 FY29 Statutory and 
Regulatory

Annual 
compliance

Compliance 
28. Record
Keeping Audit

This internal audit will perform a random check on record keeping by sampling a 
selection of staff from each portfolio. This audit will be developed and facilitated 
in conjunction with IM as per requirements in the Record Keeping Operating 
Guideline.

4 FY29 Statutory and 
Regulatory

Annual 
compliance

P
age 23



Proposed Updates to Strategic Risks
# Current Risk Current Residual 

Risk Rating Proposed Risk
Proposed 

Residual Risk 
Rating

Rationale for Change

1
Financial sustainability – Council 
financial settings are not 
sustainable in the long term.

High

Financial Sustainability - If appropriate 
financial resources and systems are not 
in place, the organisation may be 
unable to maintain financial 
sustainability, impacting its ability to 
deliver services and meet strategic 
objectives.

TBD
Risk retained; wording updated 
for clarity and alignment with JLT 
risk framework

2

Cyber security – Cyber security 
vulnerability exposes the CoA to 
data breaches and system 
compromises, risking sensitive 
information and operational 
disruption.

High

Cyber security – Our cyber security 
vulnerability exposes us to data 
breaches and system compromises, 
risking sensitive information and 
operational disruption.

TBD
Risk retained; wording updated 
for clarity and alignment with JLT 
risk framework

3

Assets and infrastructure –
Ineffective asset and 
infrastructure planning, systems, 
and programs.

High

Assets and infrastructure – Our assets 
and infrastructure do not meet 
community needs, and planning, 
systems and programs are not fit for 
purpose.

TBD
Risk retained; wording updated 
for clarity and alignment with JLT 
risk framework

4

Business resilience – The risk of 
disruptions to essential services 
and operations due to unforeseen 
events, threatening the CoA's 
ability to safeguard its personnel, 
assets, maintain service continuity 
and meet community needs.

High

Business resilience – CoA does not 
adequately prepare or respond to 
disruptions to essential services and 
operations due to unforeseen events. 

TBD
Risk retained; wording updated 
for clarity and alignment with JLT 
risk framework

Attachment B

P
age 24

A
ttachm

ent B



Proposed Updates to Strategic Risks

# Current Risk Current Residual 
Risk Rating Proposed Risk

Proposed 
Residual Risk 

Rating
Rationale for Change

5

Climate change adaptation and 
vulnerability – Impact of changing 
climate conditions and an increase 
in extreme weather events 
presents a risk to Council, 
community, infrastructure and 
natural environment.

High

Climate change adaptation and 
vulnerability – We fail to prepare 
and respond effectively to climate 
change to protect our assets, 
including our community, 
infrastructure and natural 
environment.

TBD
Risk retained; wording updated 
for clarity and alignment with JLT 
risk framework

6

Statutory and regulatory – Non-
compliance with statutory and 
regulatory requirements poses 
legal, financial, and reputational 
risks to the organisation.

Moderate

Statutory and regulatory – We fail 
to comply with statutory and 
regulatory requirements posing 
legal, financial, and reputational 
risks to the organisation.

TBD
Risk retained; wording updated 
for clarity and alignment with JLT 
risk framework

7 Reputational – Negative reputation
and public perception of Council. High

Stakeholder management – We do 
not effectively manage our 
relationships and partnerships 
with key stakeholders.

TBD

Changed reputation risk to 
stakeholder engagement risk as 
reputation damage is considered 
outcome of inadequate 
stakeholder engagement. 

8

Human resource management –
Ineffective human resource 
management; and work health & 
safety non-compliance.

High

People and Talent – We are unable 
to attract and retain sufficient 
capacity and skills to effectively 
operate while maintaining work 
health & safety compliance.

TBD
Risk retained; wording updated 
for clarity and alignment with JLT 
risk framework

P
age 25



Proposed Updates to Strategic Risks

# Current Risk Current Residual 
Risk Rating Proposed Risk

Proposed 
Residual Risk 

Rating
Rationale for Change

9

Ineffective governance –
Ineffective governance leading to 
operational inefficiencies, legal 
liabilities, and reputational 
damage.

Moderate

Governance – Ineffective 
governance leading to operational 
inefficiencies, legal liabilities, and 
reputational damage.

TBD Risk retained

10 Lack of fit for purpose IT systems 
and governance. High

Digital Capability – Our enterprise 
data, technology systems, and 
governance are not contemporary 
or aligned to organisational needs.

TBD
Risk retained; wording updated 
for clarity and alignment with JLT 
risk framework

New Risks Proposed by BDO

# Proposed Risk Proposed Risk 
Rating Rationale for New Risk

11 Strategy Implementation – Our strategic planning processes are not fully aligned or 
effective in supporting the implementation of key organisational objectives. TBD

Added Strategy Implementation as a distinct 
risk to capture the potential misalignment 
between strategic planning and operational 
execution, which may hinder delivery of key 
organisational objectives.

P
age 26



Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda - Thursday, 27 November 2025 

 

Thursday, 27 November 2025 
Audit and Risk Committee 

Audit and Risk Committee Meeting Dates 
 

Strategic Alignment - Our Corporation 
Program Contact:  
Rebecca Hayes, Associate 
Director Governance & Strategy 

Public 
 

Approving Officer:  
Anthony Spartalis, Chief 
Operating Officer 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this report is to present the proposed 2026/27 meeting schedule for the Audit and Risk Committee 
and to seek approval of the schedule for the next 12 months to support effective planning and governance. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE  
1. Approves  the following meeting schedule for the Audit and Risk Committee to be held in the Colonel Light 

Room, Town Hall, Adelaide: 

1.1. Friday 17 April 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

1.2. Friday 15 May 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

1.3. Friday 12 June 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

1.4. Friday 14 August 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

1.5. Wednesday 23 September 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

1.6. Friday 16 October 2026, starting at 9.00am; 

1.7. Friday 20 November 2026, starting at 9.00am; and  

1.8. Friday 12 February 2027, starting at 9.00am. 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4.2



 
 

Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda - Thursday, 27 November 2025 

IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS 
 

City of Adelaide 
2024-2028 
Strategic Plan 

Strategic Alignment – Our Corporation  
 

Policy 
Under the Terms of Reference and Meeting Procedures for the Audit and Risk Committee, 
the Committee will meet at least 6 times per year on dates and times to be determined by 
the Committee. 

Consultation Committee Members (including ex-offcio) were consulted regarding the meeting dates 
being presented to the Committee. 

Resource Not as a result of this report 

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative 

Proposed meeting times are in accordance with legislative requirements. Under section 126 
(5) of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA), the Committee must meet at least once each 
quarter. 

Opportunities Not as a result of this report 

25/26 Budget 
Allocation 

Independent Members of the Committee are paid a sitting fee of $500.00 per meeting 
attended. The Presiding Member receives $600.00 per meeting and $100.00 per meeting 
when requested to attend any Council or other Committee meetings. 

Proposed 26/27 
Budget Allocation Not as a result of this report 

Life of Project, 
Service, Initiative 
or (Expectancy of) 
Asset 

Not as a result of this report 

25/26 Budget 
Reconsideration  
(if applicable) 

Not as a result of this report 

Ongoing Costs 
(eg maintenance 
cost) 

Not as a result of this report 

Other Funding 
Sources Not as a result of this report 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 28



 
 

Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda - Thursday, 27 November 2025 

DISCUSSION 
1. The role of the Audit and Risk Committee (the Committee) is to provide independent assurance and advice 

to the Council on accounting, financial management, internal controls, risk management and governance 
matters. 

2. In accordance with the Committee’s Terms of Reference and Meeting Procedures document (Link 1) 
adopted by Council on 28 January 2025, the Committee will meet at least 6 times a year on dates and times 
determined by the Committee. 

3. As per section 126 (5) of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) (the Act) the Committee is required to meet at 
least once per quarter.  

4. The first meeting of the Committee to be held in 2026 is scheduled for 9.00am, Friday 6 February 2026.  

5. The proposed 2026/27 dates will meet the requirements of the Act and the Committee’s Terms of Reference.  

6. The dates and times being proposed are listed below: 

6.1. Friday 17 April 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

6.2. Friday 15 May 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

6.3. Friday 12 June 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

6.4. Friday 14 August 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

6.5. Wednesday 23 September 2026, starting at 9.00am;  

6.6. Friday 16 October 2026, starting at 9.00am; 

6.7. Friday 20 November 2026, starting at 9.00am; and  

6.8. Friday 12 February 2027, starting at 9.00am. 

7. The Committee’s Terms of Reference authorise the Chief Operating Officer to vary the meeting schedule, 
including the commencement time, meeting place, date, or cancellation of a meeting (if there are no matters 
to consider) after liaising with the Presiding Member. 

8. Committee Members (including ex-officio) have been consulted regarding the proposed 2026 committee 
meeting dates. 

 

DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
Link 1 – Audit and Risk Committee Terms of Reference and Meeting Procedures  

 

ATTACHMENTS 
Nil  
 

- END OF REPORT -  
 

Page 29

https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/Audit-and-Risk-Committee-Terms-of-Reference-Adopted-28-January-2025.pdf


Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda – Friday, 27 November 2025 

Thursday, 27 November 
2025 
Audit and Risk Committee 

Exclusion of the Public 
 

Program Contact:  
Anthony Spartalis, Chief 
Operating Officer  

 
Public 

 

Approving Officer:  
Michael Sedgman, Chief 
Executive Officer 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) (the Act), states that a Council may order that the public be 
excluded from attendance at a meeting if the Council Committee considers it to be necessary and appropriate to 
act in a meeting closed to the public to receive, discuss or consider in confidence any information or matter listed in 
section 90(3) of the Act.  

It is the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer that the public be excluded from this Audit and Risk 
Committee meeting for the consideration of information and matters contained in the Agenda. 

6.1 Confidential Meeting with Internal Auditors [section 90(3) (b) of the Act] 

  6.2 City East Housing Project Prudential Report [section 90(3) (b), (d) & (h) of the Act] 

  6.3 Confidential - Appointment of External Auditor [section 90(3) (k) of the Act] 

The Order to Exclude for Items 6.1, 6.2 & 6.3: 

1. Identifies the information and matters (grounds) from section 90(3) of the Act utilised to request 
consideration in confidence. 

2. Identifies the basis – how the information falls within the grounds identified and why it is necessary and 
appropriate to act in a meeting closed to the public. 

3. In addition, identifies for the following grounds – section 90(3) (b), (d) or (j) of the Act - how information open 
to the public would be contrary to the public interest. 

 

ORDER TO EXCLUDE FOR ITEM 6.1 
THAT THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 

1. Having taken into account the relevant consideration contained in section 90(3) (b) of the Local Government 
Act 1999 (SA), this meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee dated 27 November 2025 resolves that it is 
necessary and appropriate to act in a meeting closed to the public as the consideration of Item 6.1 
[Confidential Meeting with Internal Auditors] listed on the Agenda. 
Grounds and Basis 

This Item in the discussion could reasonably be expected to confer a commercial advantage on a person 
with whom the Council is conducting or proposing to do business. 
The disclosure of information discussed may adversely impact the commercial position of the Council. 
Public Interest 

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be conducted in a place open to 
the public has been outweighed in the circumstances because the disclosure of this information may result in 
release of information of ‘commercial advantage’ of the person conducting business with Council. 

2. Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) (the Act), this meeting of the Audit and 
Risk Committee dated 27 November 2025 orders that the public (with the exception of members of 
Corporation staff and any person permitted to remain) be excluded from this meeting to enable this meeting 
to receive, discuss or consider in confidence Item 6.1 [Confidential Meeting with Internal Auditors] listed 
in the Agenda, on the grounds that such item of business, contains information and matters of a kind referred 
to in section 90(3) (b) of the Act.  

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda – Friday, 27 November 2025 

ORDER TO EXCLUDE FOR ITEM 6.2 
THAT THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 

1. Having taken into account the relevant consideration contained in section 90(3) (b), (d) & (h) of the Local 
Government Act 1999 (SA), this meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee dated 27 November 2025 resolves 
that it is necessary and appropriate to act in a meeting closed to the public as the consideration of Item 6.2 
[City East Housing Project Prudential Report] listed on the Agenda. 

Grounds and Basis 

This item contains certain information of a confidential nature (not being a trade secret) the disclosure of 
which could reasonably expect to confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is 
conducting business, prejudice the commercial position of the Council in respect to its assets and strategic 
land holdings, and that of adjacent landowners.  

The disclosure of information in this report could reasonably prejudice the position of Council and third 
parties as it includes specialist information including legal advice provided to Council and others on a 
confidential basis. 

Public Interest 

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be conducted in a place open to 
the public has been outweighed in the circumstances because the disclosure of this information may result in 
release of confidential information of Council and adjacent landowners that are of a financial, legal and 
strategic nature. 

2. Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) (the Act), this meeting of the Audit and 
Risk Committee dated 27 November 2025 orders that the public (with the exception of members of 
Corporation staff and any person permitted to remain) be excluded from this meeting to enable this meeting 
to receive, discuss or consider in confidence Item 6.2 [City East Housing Project Prudential Report] listed 
in the Agenda, on the grounds that such item of business, contains information and matters of a kind referred 
to in section 90(3) (b), (d) & (h) of the Act.  

ORDER TO EXCLUDE FOR ITEM 6.3 
THAT THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 

1. Having taken into account the relevant consideration contained in section 90(3) (k) of the Local Government 
Act 1999 (SA), this meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee dated 27 November 2025 resolves that it is 
necessary and appropriate to act in a meeting closed to the public as the consideration of Item 6.3 
[Confidential - Appointment of External Auditor] listed on the Agenda. 

Grounds and Basis 

This Item is confidential as a procurement process was conducted for tenders to provide services to Council. 

The disclosure of information in this report could reasonably prejudice the commercial position of the person 
who supplied the information as part of the tender process. 

2. Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) (the Act), this meeting of the Audit and 
Risk Committee dated 27 November 2025 orders that the public (with the exception of members of 
Corporation staff and any person permitted to remain) be excluded from this meeting to enable this meeting 
to receive, discuss or consider in confidence Item 6.3 [Confidential - Appointment of External Auditor] 
listed in the Agenda, on the grounds that such item of business, contains information and matters of a kind 
referred to in section 90(3) (k) of the Act.  

 

DISCUSSION 
1. Section 90(1) of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) (the Act) directs that a meeting of a Council 

Committee must be conducted in a place open to the public. 

2. Section 90(2) of the Act, states that a Council Committee may order that the public be excluded from 
attendance at a meeting if the Council Committee considers it to be necessary and appropriate to act in a 
meeting closed to the public to receive, discuss or consider in confidence any information or matter listed in 
section 90(3) of the Act.  

3. Section 90(3) of the Act prescribes the information and matters that a Council may order that the public be 
excluded from. 

Page 31



Audit and Risk Committee – Agenda – Friday, 27 November 2025 

4. Section 90(4) of the Act, advises that in considering whether an order should be made to exclude the public 
under section 90(2) of the Act, it is irrelevant that discussion of a matter in public may - 

‘(a) cause embarrassment to the council or council committee concerned, or to members or employees 
of the council; or  

(b) cause a loss of confidence in the council or council committee; or 
(c) involve discussion of a matter that is controversial within the council area; or  
(d) make the council susceptible to adverse criticism.’ 

5. Section 90(7) of the Act requires that an order to exclude the public: 

5.1 Identify the information and matters (grounds) from section 90(3) of the Act utilised to request 
consideration in confidence. 

5.2 Identify the basis – how the information falls within the grounds identified and why it is necessary 
and appropriate to act in a meeting closed to the public. 

5.3 In addition identify for the following grounds – section 90(3) (b), (d) or (j) of the Act - how information 
open to the public would be contrary to the public interest. 

6. Section 87(10) of the Act has been utilised to identify in the Agenda and on the Report for the meeting, that 
the following reports are submitted seeking consideration in confidence. 

6.1 Information contained in Item 6.1 - Confidential Meeting with Internal Auditors 

6.1.1 Is not subject to an existing Confidentiality Order dated. 

6.1.2 The grounds utilised to request consideration in confidence is section 90(3) (b) of the Act 

(b)  information the disclosure of which – 
(i) could reasonably be expected to confer a commercial advantage on a person with 

whom the council is conducting, or proposing to conduct business or to prejudice the 
commercial position of the council; and 

(ii) would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest. 
6.2 Information contained in Item 6.2 - City East Housing Project Prudential Report 

6.2.1 Is not subject to an existing Confidentiality Order dated. 

6.2.2 The grounds utilised to request consideration in confidence is section 90(3) (b), (d) & (h) of the 
Act 
(b) information the disclosure of which – 

(i) could reasonably be expected to confer a commercial advantage on a person with 
whom the council is conducting, or proposing to conduct business or to prejudice 
the commercial position of the council; and 

(ii) would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest. 
(d) commercial information of a confidential nature (not being a trade secret) the disclosure 

of which- 
(i) could reasonably be expected to prejudice the commercial position of the person 

who supplied the information, or to confer a commercial advantage on a third party; 
and 

(ii) would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest. 
(h) legal advice. 

6.3 Information contained in Item 6.3 - Confidential - Appointment of External Auditor 
6.3.1  Is not subject to an existing Confidentiality Order dated. 

6.3.2 The grounds utilised to request consideration in confidence is section 90(3) (k) of the Act 

(k) tenders for the supply of goods, the provision of services or the carrying out of works. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
Nil  
 

- END OF REPORT -  

Page 32



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Agenda Item 6.1
Pursuant to the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) - Section 90(3) (b)



Document is Restricted

Page 36

Agenda Item 6.2
Pursuant to the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) - Section 90(3) (b), (d), (h)



Document is Restricted

Page 46

Attachment A
Pursuant to the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) - Section 90(3) (b), (d), (h)



Document is Restricted

Page 90

Attachment B
Pursuant to the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) - Section 90(3) (b), (d), (h)



Document is Restricted

Page 93

Agenda Item 6.3
Pursuant to the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) - Section 90(3) (k)


	Agenda
	4.1 Proposed Strategic Risks and Internal Audit Plan
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS
	DISCUSSION
	DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS
	Attachment A - 2026 - 2029 Internal Audit Plan
	Proposed Updates to Strategic Risks
	Proposed Updates to Strategic Risks
	Proposed Updates to Strategic Risks
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review - DRAFT
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review - DRAFT
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review

	Attachment B - Strategic Risks
	Proposed Updates to Strategic Risks
	Proposed Updates to Strategic Risks
	Proposed Updates to Strategic Risks
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review - DRAFT
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review - DRAFT
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review
	Internal Audit Plan and Priority Review


	4.2 Audit and Risk Committee Meeting Dates
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS
	DISCUSSION
	DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS

	5 Exclusion of the Public
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	ORDER TO EXCLUDE FOR ITEM 6.1
	ORDER TO EXCLUDE FOR ITEM 6.2
	ORDER TO EXCLUDE FOR ITEM 6.3
	DISCUSSION
	ATTACHMENTS

	6.1 Confidential Meeting with Internal Auditors
	6.2 City East Housing Project Prudential Report
	Attachment A for City East Housing Project Prudential Report
	Attachment B for City East Housing Project Prudential Report

	6.3 Confidential - Appointment of External Auditor

